
   
 

AGENDA 
 

LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

AUGUST 17, 2022 
 
 
I. Opening of meeting at ________________ p.m. by __________________ 
 
 
II. Notation of attendance 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
III. Announcement by presiding officer, pursuant to New Jersey Open Public Meetings Act, 

that 
 

Adequate Notice of this Regular Meeting and of all Regular Meetings for the 
Year 2022, has been provided by publication thereof in the Link on February 24, 
2022 as a “legal” advertisement and in the Asbury Park Press on February 21, 
2022 as a “legal” advertisement, and by forwarding duplicates thereof on 
February 17, 2022, to the Clerks of the City of Long Branch, Borough of West 
Long Branch and Borough of Monmouth Beach for filing in their respective 
offices and for posting in a public place in each such Municipality.  Notice of this 
Regular Meeting to be held both in-person and electronically has been provided 
electronically by posting thereof on the official website of the Long Branch 
Sewerage Authority pursuant to Public Law 2020, C.11. 
 
 

 

Name Position In Out 
Donald S. Riley Chairman   
Michael Booth Vice-Chairman   
David G. Brown  Secretary   
Bryan I. Larco Treasurer   
Vacant  Asst. Secretary/ Treas.   
    
Thomas Roguski Executive Director   
Charles J. Fallon  Auditor   
John L. Bonello Counsel   
Susan Brasefield Engineer    
Nicole Woods Secretary    
    
    



   
 

IV. Solar Panel Investigation Presentation  
 
 
V. Public Participation 
 

Motion by_________________, seconded by ________________ that this item of the 
Agenda be closed. 

 
Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco       Vacant 
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
VI. As to Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 20, 2022 
 

Motion by __________________, seconded by ______________ that the reading of the 
minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority held on July 20, 
2022 be dispensed with, and that such Minutes be, and they are hereby, approved as 
recorded and circulated. 
  

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco       Vacant 
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 
                 

 
VII. As to Minutes of the Executive Session held on July 20, 2022, if any (NONE) 
 

Motion by ________________, seconded by ______________ that the reading of the 
minutes of the Executive Session held on July 20, 2022, be dispensed with, and that such 
Minutes be, and they are hereby, approved as recorded and circulated. 
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco       Vacant 
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
VIII. Correspondence 
 

Motion by______________, seconded by ________________, as to items to be received 
and filed. 

 
Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco       Vacant 
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

LIST OF CORRESPONDENCE FOR REGULAR MEETING 
LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 

 

August 17, 2022 
 
 
1) Certified Legal Notice received 7/19/22 from Mark and Rena Edelstein, re: 399 

Monmouth Road / Block 60 Lot 58 / West Long Branch (NOT LBSA) 
 
2) Certified Notice of Public Hearing dated 7/6/22 received 7/19/22 from Bathahus, 

LLC, re: 333-345 Second Avenue / Block 212 Lots 4, 5 and 11, Applicant proposes to 
raze all existing improvements on the property and redevelop the property with the 
project consisting of fifteen (15) residential townhomes units 

 
3) Certified Notice of Hearing dated 7/13/22 received 7/19/22 from Jennifer S. Krimko, 

Esq., re: 129 Franklin Ave. / Block 217 Lot 26, Applicant seeks preliminary and final 
site plan and subdivision approval for redevelopment consisting of four (4) 
townhouse units 

 
4) Copy of letter dated 7/25/22 received 07/25/22 from Thomas Roguski to Heather 

Capone, RMC. / Long Branch City Clerk, re: Request for Street Vacation- University 
Place  

 
5) Certified Letter dated 7/20/22 received 7/26/22 from 11 Nolan LLC, re: 11 Nolan 

Drive / West Long Branch (NOT LBSA) 
 
6) Certified Letter dated 7/20/22 received 7/26/22 from Seryl Kushner, re: 11 Adams 

Street / Block 59 Lots 1.01-2.01, Application of CAFRA General Permit 5 
 
7) Letter dated 7/29/22 received 8/1/22 from Colliers Engineering and Design, re: 6 

West End Court / 3 & 13 New Court / Block 91 Lots 6.02 & 7 / Block 92 Lot 7, 
Sanitary Sewer Application Approval for a three-story mixed-use building 

 
8) Certified Notice of Public Hearing received 8/2/22 from Gary E. Fox, Esq., re: 279 

Third Ave. / Block 205 Lot 1, Applicant seeks to renovate and old medical building 
and convert into rental apartments 

 
9) Certified Notice of Public Hearing received 8/2/22 from Richard B. Stone, Esq., re: 

103, 105 & 107 West End Ave / Block 131 Lots 15, 17 & 19, Applicant is seeking a 
Certificate of Nonconforming Use/Structure for each of the three properties 

 
10) Certified Notice dated 7/14/22 received 8/2/22 from Salvatore Alfeiri, Esq, re: 655 

Westwood Ave. / Block 100 Lot 15, Applicant is seeking Use Variance to raze the 
single-family house to build a new single family house while retaining the three story 
apartment building on the same lot. 

 



   
 

11) Letter dated 8/2/22 received 8/5/22 from George S. Jackson, City Of Long Branch 
Business Administrator, re: Long Branch Senior Center Building Addition / Block 
287.01 Lots 18.01, 19.01, 20, 22.02 & 22.04 

 
12) Certified Notice of Public Hearing dated 8/2/22 received 8/9/22, re: 333-345 Second 

Avenue / Block 212 Lots 4, 5 and 11, Applicant proposes to raze all existing 
improvements on the property and redevelop the property with the project consisting 
of fifteen (15) residential townhomes units 

 
13) Certified Legal Notice received 8/9/22 from Mark & Rena Edelstein, re: 399-401 

Monmouth Road / Block 60 Lots 56, 57 & 58 / West Long Branch (NOT LBSA) 
 
14) Certified letter dated 8/2/22 received 8/9/22 from Lomax Consulting Group, re: 

NJDEP CAFRA Individual Permit, 390 Ocean Ave / Block 215 Lots 3 & 5.01 
 
15) Letter dated 08/2/22 received 8/5/22 from City of Long Branch Business 

Administrator/ George Jackson, re: Long Branch Senior Center Building Addition/ 
Block 287.01, Lots 18.01,19.01,20,22.02,22.04 

 
16) Letter dated 8/9/22 received 8/11/22 from Kennedy Consulting Engineers, LLC., re: 

Letter of Serviceability for 18 Adams Street / Block 57 Lot 4  
 
17) Letter dated 8/2/22 received 8/11/22 from InSite Engineering, re: Utility Availability 

Request/ Sewer Proposed Storage Building/ 80 Avenel Blvd/ Block 439.01 Lot 1 
 
18) Certified Notice of Public Hearing dated 08/3/22 received 08/11/22, re: 390-392 

Ocean Ave / Block 215 Lots 3 & 5.01 / Application for preliminary and final major 
site plan approval of 154-unit residential building, with internal parking spaces, 
outdoor amenities  

 
19) Letter dated 8/11/22 received 8/11/22 from Insite Engineering, re: West End 

Development, LLC / Proposed Block 92 Lot 7.01 / 6 West End Court 
 
20) Letter dated 8/12/22 received 8/12/22 from Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc., re: 

Partial Payment Request No.4 for WWTP Sludge Handling System and Emergency 
Pump Station Improvements/ Thomas Controls Inc. 

 
21) Letter dated 8/15/22 received 8/15/22 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: 

Engineers Status Report for August 2022 meeting 
 
22) Letter dated 8/16/22 received 8/16/22 from John L. Bonello, Esq. re: Employment 

Agreement between Thomas Roguski and LBSA 
 
 
 
 



   
 

IX. Report of Executive Director for the August 2022 Meeting 
 

Motion by______________, seconded by __________________ that the same, as 
prepared and submitted, is approved and ordered received and filed and made a part of 
the Minutes of this Meeting 
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco       Vacant 
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
X. As to Bills submitted for payment by Long Branch Sewerage Authority for the Month of 

July 2022 
 

Resolution by_______________________, seconded by __________________that the 
Schedule of Bills for the Month of July 2022 prepared and submitted by the Executive 
Director for approval, is found regular and payment of each and all thereof, be, and it is, 
hereby, authorized to be made out of funds of Authority as the same are, or may become, 
available for such purpose. 

 
Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco       Vacant 
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
XI. Report by Authority Counsel of the Activities of that Office and of Actions taken since 

July 20, 2022. 
 

Motion by ______________________, seconded by ________________ that all actions 
taken and dispositions made by Authority Counsel, of and with regard and with regard to 
each and all of the foregoing items be, and they are in all respects, approved, confirmed 
and ratified. 
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco       Vacant 
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
XII. Report by Authority Auditor of the Activities of that Office and of Actions taken since 

July 20, 2022. 
 

Motion by ____________________, seconded by ________________ that all actions 
taken by Authority Auditor, of and with regard to each and all of the foregoing items be, 
and they are in all respects, approved, confirmed and ratified. 
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco       Vacant 
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 



   
 

XIII. Report, if any, by Investment Committee 
 

Resolution by _________________, seconded by ___________________that the 
Investments be approved and made. 
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco       Vacant 
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
XIV. Transfers, if any 
 

Resolution by ______________, seconded by _________________ that the List of 
Transfers, as submitted, is approved, ordered, received and filed and made a part of the 
Minutes of this Meeting. 
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco       Vacant 
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
XV. Old Business 
 
 
A. Engineer’s Report on Redevelopment Projects  
 
B. Future Capital Improvement Program 
 
 See attached Engineer’s Status Report, dated August 15, 2022. 
 
 
XVI.  New Business 
 
 
XVII.  Miscellaneous Suggestions for Good of Authority 
 
 
XVIII. Adjournment at ____________ o'clock p.m. 
 
 

Motion by ____________________, seconded by _____________________ that the 
meeting be adjourned. 
 

Riley     Booth  Brown  Larco       Vacant 
 AYES  NAYS  ABSTAIN ABSENT 

 
 
 



   
 

RESOLUTION 
 

 ________________offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; seconded 
by ________________ 
  
 WHEREAS, West End LB Development, LLC, has applied for sewer connection for 6 
West End Court and 3 & 13 New Court, known as Block 91, Lots 6.02 & 7, and Block 92, Lot 7, 
for a new mixed-use building, and   
 
 WHEREAS, the application was accompanied by the necessary plans and specification, and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Authority Engineer, Colliers Engineering & Design, has reviewed the 
plans and associated documents and has recommended that the application be conditionally 
approved in their letter, dated July 29, 2022, attached hereto, and made a part hereof, and  
 
 WHEREAS, there is adequate capacity to service the request.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long Branch Sewerage Authority that 
the application of West End LB Development, LLC, for connection to the sewerage system be and 
the same is hereby approved conditionally as per the letter of the Authority Engineer, dated July 29, 
2022, and upon the payment of all requisite fees, including, but not limited to, 50% of the total 
connection fee due prior to issuance of the City of Long Branch Building Permit, the remaining 
50% due prior to issuance of any Certificate of Occupancy. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director 
are authorized to sign any documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley   - 
Mr. Booth  -  
Mr. Brown   -  
Mr. Larco   -    
Vacant   -  
 
 
Date: August 17, 2022 
R1.8-22 
Exhibit: A 



   
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 ________________offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; seconded 

by ________________ 
  
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority has received Partial Payment Request 
No. 4 from Thomas Controls, Inc. for the Sludge Handling System and Emergency Pump Station 
Improvements Project, and  
 
 WHEREAS, this request for payment is in the amount of $198,058.00, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Engineer, Colliers Engineering & Design, has recommended 
approval of this request, per their letter dated August 12, 2022, attached hereto, and made a part 
hereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long Branch Sewerage Authority 
that it approves payment of Partial Payment Request No. 4 to Thomas Controls, Inc. in the 
amount of $198,058.00. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director 
are authorized to sign any documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  -  
Mr. Booth  -  
Mr. Brown   -  
Mr. Larco   -  
Vacant   -  
 
 
Date:  August 17, 2022 
R2.8-2022 
Exhibit B 



   
 

RESOLUTION 
 

 ________________offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; seconded 
by ________________ 

 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (herein after “the Authority”) desires 
to contract for the following:  (1) removal, transport, and disposal of sand, grit, and bar screen 
screenings; (2) furnishing and delivery of dry polymer; (3) furnishing and delivery of emulsion 
polymer; (4) furnishing and delivery of aluminum hydroxide chloride; (5) furnishing and 
delivery of sodium hypochlorite; (6) furnishing pump & motor repairs and new motor purchase; 
(7) road restoration and infrared paving; (8) furnishing and delivery of magnesium hydroxide  (9) 
electrical maintenance services; (10) purchase of odor control media; (11) HVAC maintenance 
services; and (12) sanitary sewer system repairs and service lateral installations, and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that said purchases should be made by public 
bid in accordance with law, and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is required by law that the Authority advertise for said bids. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long Branch Sewerage Authority 
 that: 
 
 1. The Authority is authorized to advertise for bids for the above-described   
  contracts. 
 
 2. The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are authorized to sign   
  any documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  -  
Mr. Booth  -  
Mr. Brown   -  
Mr. Larco   -  
Vacant   -  
 
 
Date:  August 17, 2022 
R3.7-2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

RESOLUTION 
 

 ________________offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; seconded 
by ________________ 

 
WHEREAS, Thomas Roguski was appointed as Executive Director of the Long Branch 

Sewerage Authority on August 16, 2017, with a start date of October 1, 2017 and has 
continuously served as the Executive Director of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority through 
the present date; and; and, 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:14A-5(e), the Authority is empowered to determine 

the terms of office, duties and compensation of its officers, agents and employees; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to provide Roguski with a written employment 
contract in order to enhance administrative stability and continuity within the system as the 
Executive Director; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority and Mr. Roguski believe that a written employment contract 

is necessary to describe specifically their relationship and to serve as the basis of effective 
communication between them as they fulfill their duties and administrative functions in the 
operation of the sewerage system for the City of Long Branch, and, 

 
WHEREAS, the written employment contract dated August 17, 2022 is attached hereto 

and made a part hereof, and, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE 
AUTHORITY, the written employment contract dated August 17, 2022 attached hereto and 
made a part hereof is approved and ratified by the Long Branch Sewerage Authority, and, 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Thomas Roguski is hereby reappointed to serve as the 

Authority Executive Director pursuant to the contract attached hereto and made a part hereof, 
and, 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Authority Chairman is authorized to sign any 

documents and written employment contract dated August 17, 2022 attached hereto necessary to 
effectuate the purpose of this Resolution, and, 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Mr. Roguski, Executive Director, be issued the written 

employment contract dated August 17, 2022 attached hereto. 
 

ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  -  
Mr. Booth  -  
Mr. Brown   -  
Mr. Larco   -  
Vacant   -  
 
 



   
 

Date:  August 17, 2022 
R4.7-2022 
Exhibit C 
 

*** 
 



   
 

RESOLUTION 
 

 ________________offered the following Resolution and moved its adoption; seconded 
by ________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 8 of the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 231, P.L. 1975, permits 
the exclusion of the public from a meeting in various circumstances, and  
 
 WHEREAS, this public body is of the opinion that such circumstances presently exist, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Long Branch Sewerage Authority as 
follows: 
 

1.  The Public shall be excluded from discussion and action upon the hereinafter 
subject matters. 

 
2.  The general nature of the subject matter to be discussed is as follows: 
 
 
3.  It is anticipated at this time that the above-stated subject matters will be made 

public when the matters are resolved. 
 
4.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  -  
Mr. Booth  -  
Mr. Brown  -  
Mr. Larco  -  
Vacant   -  
 
 
Date:   
ResExSess 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 





Capacity Assurance

 Present Flow Approved Project Est. Flow Conceptual Project Est. Flow

MGD

Aqua-Vista (20 + Retail) 0.00436 Broadway Arts Group (590 + 100K) 0.18700

Jul-22 3.85 Casey Jones Redevelopment 0.00876 700 Joline Avenue 0.007

Jun-22 3.82 The Westwood (53) 0.0159 3 New Court Mixed Use (26 + 1.4K) 0.00794

May-22 3.76 178 Chelsea Avenue School (34) 0.0102 SICA Development 0.002636

Apr-22 3.63 Willow Ave. Redevelopment (104) 0.01670 279 Third Avenue (70) 0.021

Mar-22 3.37 27, 31, 35 & 37 Third Avenue 0.00244 175 Chelsea Avenue (33) 0.0099

Feb-22 3.38 Takanassee Lake (13) 0.00390 305 Broadway (Office/Warehouse) 0.000878

Jan-22 3.00 The Reef (26 Townhouses) 0.00780 Synagogue Add. - 295 Park Ave. 0.00521

Dec-21 2.70 PAX Plaza (24 + retail/resturant) 0.02022 Bluffs (109) 0.0327

Nov-21 3.07 124 Franklin Avenue (4) 0.0012 145-153 Morris Avenue (125) 0.0375

Oct-21 3.13 The Enclave at West End (20) 0.006 390-392 Ocean (154) 0.0462

Sep-21 3.79 Ocean Gate at Cooper Avenue 0.03788 Neptune Avenue (62 + 18.4K) 0.02044

Aug-21 4.04 180 Brighton (24 + 5.5K) 0.00595 201 - 215 Third Avenue (40 + 8.4K) 0.01284

total 41.54 180 Morris Avenue (28 + Office) 0.00457

Onada Surf Club Hotel 0.00803

Design 5.4 Broadway 7-11 0.00034

Avg. 3.462 15 Atlantic Avenue (4) 0.0012

Approved 0.1554 Total Approved Project 0.155443 Total Conceptual Project 0.39125

Conceptual 0.3912 Approved & Conceptual 0.54669

total 4.008 95% of capacity is 5.13 Percent of 100% capacity available 26% 1.39    MGD

Percent of 95% capacity available 22% 1.12    MGD

Available 1.391643    Equivalent Units Available 4,639  @ 100% Capacity

in MGD       based on 300 gals/day/ unit

Equivalent Units Available 3,739  @ 95% Capacity

             based on 300 gals/day/ unit  

    



331 Newman Springs Road  
Suite 203  
Red Bank New Jersey 07701 
Main: 877 627 3772 
 
 

August 15, 2022 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
 
 
Thomas Roguski, Executive Director 
Long Branch Sewerage Authority 
150 Joline Avenue 
P.O. Box 720 
Long Branch, NJ 07740 
 
Engineer's Status Report 
August 2022 Meeting 
Colliers Engineering & Design Project No. LBS-001 
 
Dear Mr. Roguski, 
 
The following is a report on the status of projects for which Colliers Engineering & Design is 
responsible: 
 
1.  WWTP Hot Water System Improvements (LBS-272) 
 
The project was originally bid on February 11, 2020, and there were no bidders. A site meeting was 
held on July 6, 2021. Colliers Engineering & Design has revised the plans per the meeting and the 
project will be held for construction until a later date. A PDF of the plans will be provided at a later 
date. 
 
2.  Sanitary Sewer Railroad Crossing Study and Improvements (LBS-274) 
 
CCTV of the railroad crossings were completed on May 6, 2021. A memo summarizing the results was 
issued on July 16, 2021. There were no major issues requiring replacement found. The contract 
documents for lining of the crossings were provided to LBSA for review and have been submitted to 
NJDEP. 
 
3.  Hoey Pump Station Force Main Replacement (LBS-275) 
 
Final paving is complete. Payment Application #6 was submitted July 7, 2022. Final walkthrough with 
Earle occurred on August 12, 2022.  As-builts are being prepared and will be uploaded to VueWorks. 
Working on NJT closeout, NJDEP final inspection will be schedule for later in August. 
 
4.  Sludge Holding System Modifications & Final Settling Tank Improvements (LBS-281) 
 
Construction is underway. Thomas Controls has completed work on the gears and sprockets, and 
drives performed test pits for the pump station valve chamber, completed most of the demolition at 



Project No. LBS-001  
August 15, 2022 
Page 2 | 4 

the proposed sludge holding tanks, and mostly completed the coating of the sludge holding tank. 
Most equipment has been received. Shop drawing reviews are continuing. 
 
5. I/I Study and Improvements (LBS-284) 
 
Survey has been completed and design is being finalized.  Documents will be submitted to NJDEP for 
authorization to bid. 
 
6. Solar Feasibility Study (LBS-0320) 
 
The report will be presented at the Authority meeting. 
 
7. Planning Document for Infrastructure Bill (LBS-001) 
 
The letters of Intent have been submitted to NJIB. A Planning Document is being prepared and will be 
submitted to NJDEP.  
 
8. Active Escrow Projects  
 
LBS-278 – The Reef (in construction) 
Final tests and inspection are being scheduled. As-builts have not been submitted yet. 
 
LBS-285 – 298 Westwood Avenue 
One-year TWA extension approved April 2022. 
 
LBS-290 – Takanassee (in construction) 
Sanitary main and laterals installed. Final testing to be performed. Punchlist was sent to Applicant on 
June 7, 2021. 
 
LBS-292 – Proposed 7-Eleven 
Approval letter was sent January 7, 2021 to the Applicant.  
 
LBS-295 – Broadway Place (Phase I/II) 
Approval letter sent May 12, 2020. Developer's agreement and fees were sent to the Applicant on July 
9, 2020.  
 
LBS-299 – The Belmont (in construction) 
Pre-construction meeting was held July 6, 2022. Shop drawings have been returned. Construction is 
underway. 
 
LBS-305 – Pax Plaza 
Revised connection fees letter was provided to Applicant on February 22, 2022.  
 
LBS-306 – 38 Sternberger Avenue (in construction) 
As-builts were approved and added to VueWorks. Closeout letter was provided. 



Project No. LBS-001  
August 15, 2022 
Page 3 | 4 

LBS-308 – Chelsea School 
Approval letter was sent February 26, 2021.  
 
LBS-309 – Rt. 36 Resurfacing 
Review letter was sent on December 23, 2020 to NJDOT. 
 
LBS-310 – Pleasure Bay Park Pool Improvements (in construction) 
Construction is substantially complete. Final walkthrough to be scheduled, followed by project 
closeout. As-builts to be submitted. 
 
LBS-314 – The Enclave at West End (in construction) 
Pre-construction meeting was held on November 12, 2021. Building permit pending for Building #1 
only. Construction is underway. Pipe and manholes have been installed. 
 
LBS-315 – NJDOT Bridge over Troutman’s Creek 
A meeting with NJDOT took place on Friday June 10, 2022. 
 
LBS-0316 – Ocean Gate (in construction) 
Additional Preconstruction meeting was held in the field on November 22, 2021. Sanitary construction 
stopped pending submission of shop drawings and revised drawings. A site meeting was held on April 
6, 2022. Revised site plans were approved July 5, 2022.  
 
LBS-0317 – 175 Chelsea Avenue  
Review letter was sent on June 8, 2021 to the Applicant. A revised submission was made, and a letter 
was sent to the Applicant on September 9, 2021 outlining remaining items to be submitted. 
 
LBS-0318 – 15 Atlantic Avenue Townhouse (in construction) 
Pre-construction meeting was held on November 4, 2021. The lateral from adjacent lot has been 
installed. 
 
LBS-0321 – 290 Ocean Avenue 
Review letter was sent on January 10, 2022 to the Applicant.  
 
LBS-0322 – Franklin Beach Townhomes 
Resubmitted documents were received. Review letter is to be sent this week.  
 
LBS-0234 – West End LB Development 
Review letter was issued on July 29, 2022.  
 
LBS 0325 – 185 Morris Avenue 
Preconstruction meeting was held July 15, 2022. Awaiting submission of revised plans and shop 
drawings.  
 
 
 



Project No. LBS-001  
August 15, 2022 
Page 4 | 4 

LBS 0326 – 279 Third Avenue 
Application is under review.  
 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc. 
(DBA Maser Consulting) 
 
 
 
 
Susan S. Brasefield, P.E., P.P., CME 
Geographic Discipline Leader 
 
SSB/sab 
 
R:\Projects\I-L\Lbs\Lbs001\Reports\Monthly Status Updates\2022\220815_ssb_Roguski_AugustMeeting.docx 



















































































































































































































 

 
 
 1 

  LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 
 
 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
 
 JULY 20, 2022 

 
 
I. and II. Opening and Attendance at Meeting. 
 
 A Regular Meeting of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority was called to order at 3:01 
p.m., prevailing time, on Wednesday, July 20, 2022, by the Executive Director, Thomas Roguski, 
both in-person and electronically via telephonic communication conference call, attended by Mr. 
Riley, Mr. Booth, Mr. Brown & Mr. Larco.  
 
 In addition to the Members of the Authority hereinabove stated, there were present at said 
Regular Meeting the following professional attaches: Thomas Roguski, P.E., Executive Director; 
John L. Bonello, Esq., of the firm Manna & Bonello, P.A., Authority Counsel; Susan S. Brasefield, 
P.E., of the firm Colliers Engineering and Design, Authority Engineer; Charles J. Fallon, CPA, 
RMA, of the firm Fallon & Company, LLP, Authority Auditor; and Nicole Woods, Secretary.   
 
 
III. Announcement Pursuant to New Jersey Open Public Meeting Act. 
 

Adequate Notice of this Regular Meeting and of all Regular Meetings for the 
Year 2022, has been provided by publication thereof in the Link on February 24, 
2022 as a “legal” advertisement and in the Asbury Park Press on February 21, 
2022 as a “legal” advertisement, and by forwarding duplicates thereof on 
February 17, 2022, to the Clerks of the City of Long Branch, Borough of West 
Long Branch and Borough of Monmouth Beach for filing in their respective 
offices and for posting in a public place in each such Municipality.  Notice of this 
Regular Meeting to be held both in-person and electronically has been provided 
electronically by posting thereof on the official website of the Long Branch 
Sewerage Authority pursuant to Public Law 2020, C.11. 

 
 
IV. Public Participation. 
  
 Mr. Lepore from 33 Ocean Terrace was present via telephonic communication. 
 
 Mr. Lepore stated that Correspondence Item No. 14, the construction of four (4) single 
family homes at 169 Chelsea Avenue, and Correspondence Item No. 13, the Wave Spa/Hotel, were 
both approved by the City Planning Board, however the Wave Spa is still pending DEP CAFRA 
approval. 
 
 Mr. Lepore stated that a new Commissioner, Susie Morris, will be appointed this evening at 
the City Council meeting.  



 

 
 
 2 

 Mr. Lepore referenced the Commissioner Compensation Committee recommendation 
regarding commissioner compensation and referred to Mr. Larco’s statement last July regarding the 
state of the economy and feels that the economy is not any better this time than last year.  
 
 Mr. Lepore questioned Mr. Roguski as to why the fountain on Broadway was turned off 
around 6:00 pm last night. Mr. Roguski replied that it is always shut down in the evenings. Mr. 
Lepore suggested that the hours be extended until 8:00 p.m. during the heatwave.  Mr. Roguski 
replied that he will investigate extending the hours of operation.  
 
 Mr. Lepore questioned if Mr. Roguski had any details regarding the death of the 
Middletown Sewerage Authority employee. Mr. Roguski replied negatively.  
  
  Mr. Lepore had no further comments and thanked the Board.  
 
 On Motion by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Riley, and passed by the affirmative vote of all 
members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain; the Public Participation portion of the Meeting 
was closed. 
 
 
V. As to the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 15, 2022 
 
 On Motion by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Brown, and passed by the affirmative vote of all 
members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, the reading of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting 
of the Long Branch Sewerage Authority held on June 15, 2022, to be dispensed with and that such 
Minutes be, and they are hereby, approved as recorded and circulated. 
 
 
VI. As to the Minutes of the Executive Session held on June 15, 2022, if any  
 
 None 
  
 
VII. Correspondence 
 
 The attached list of correspondence was reviewed by the Authority.  Individual items were 
dealt with as follows:  
 
 Mr. Roguski stated that Correspondence Item No. 11 is a letter from Colliers Engineering & 
Design recommending approval of Partial Payment Request No. 6 for the Hoey Pump Station Force 
Main Replacement Project. Mr. Roguski further stated that this project is substantially complete and 
only one more payment request is expected.  
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 3 

 The following resolution was presented.  
 

RESOLUTION 
 
Mr. Booth offered the following Resolution and moved its 

adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown 
  
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority has 
received Partial Payment Request No. 6 from Earle Asphalt 
Company for the Hoey Pump Station Force Main Replacement 
Project, and  
 
 WHEREAS, this request for payment is in the amount of 
$398,957.84, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Engineer, Colliers Engineering 
& Design, has recommended approval of this request, per their 
letter dated July 7, 2022, attached hereto, and made a part hereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority that it approves payment of Partial 
Payment Request No. 6 to Earle Asphalt Company in the amount 
of $398,957.84. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority 
Chairman and/or Executive Director are authorized to sign any 
documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown   - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE 
Vacant   -  
 
Date:  July 20, 2022 
R1.7-2022 
Exhibit A 

**** 
 
 Mr. Roguski stated that Correspondence Item No. 15 is a letter from Colliers Engineering & 
Design recommending approval of Partial Payment Request No. 3 for the WWTP Sludge Handling 
System and Emergency Pump Station Improvements Project.  
 
 
 



 

 
 
 4 

 The following resolution was presented.  
 

RESOLUTION 
 
Mr. Booth offered the following Resolution and moved its 

adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown 
  
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority has 
received Partial Payment Request No. 3 from Thomas Controls, 
Inc. for the Sludge Handling System and Emergency Pump Station 
Improvements Project, and  
 
 WHEREAS, this request for payment is in the amount of 
$325,374.88, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Engineer, Colliers Engineering 
& Design, has recommended approval of this request, per their 
letter dated July 12, 2022, attached hereto, and made a part hereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority that it approves payment of Partial 
Payment Request No. 3 to Thomas Controls, Inc. in the amount of 
$325,374.88. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Authority 
Chairman and/or Executive Director are authorized to sign any 
documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown   - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE 
Vacant   -  
 
Date:  July 20, 2022 
R2.7-2022 
Exhibit B 

**** 
  
 Mr. Roguski explained that Correspondence Item No. 17 is a letter from Colliers 
Engineering & Design requesting a transfer of design, construction administration and construction 
observation funds from the WWTP Hot Water System & Final Settling Tank Mechanical 
Improvements Project to the WWTP Sludge Handling System and Emergency Pump Station 
Improvements Project.  Mr. Roguski stated that the final settling tank mechanical improvements 
task was previously moved to the WWTP Sludge Handling System and Emergency Pump Station 



 

 
 
 5 

Improvements Project, and today’s request moves engineering funds accordingly.  Mr. Roguski 
stressed that no new funds are being allocated, rather previously approved funds are being moved. 
Mr. Roguski further stated that once the resolution is approved, it will then be sent to the DEP for 
final approval. 
 
 The following resolution was presented.  
 

RESOLUTION 
 

  Mr. Booth offered the following Resolution and 
moved its adoption; seconded by Mr. Larco 
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority (the 
"Authority") has previously entered into a Professional Engineering 
Services Contract with Maser Consulting, P.A. (currently Colliers 
Engineering & Design) for the design, construction administration 
and construction observation services for the WWTP Hot Water 
System & Final Settling Tank Mechanical Improvements Project 
under Resolution R7.7-18, dated July 18, 2018, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority has previously entered into a 
Professional Engineering Services Contract with Maser Consulting, 
P.A. (currently Colliers Engineering & Design) for the design, 
construction administration and construction observation services for 
the WWTP Sludge Holding System Improvements Project under 
Resolution R1.1-19, dated January 16, 2019, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority’s Consulting Engineer, Colliers 
Engineering and Design, has submitted a letter, dated July 15, 2022, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof, requesting approval to 
transfer $41,760.00 of the construction phase engineering budget 
from the WWTP Hot Water System & Final Settling Tank 
Mechanical Improvements Project to the WWTP Sludge Holding 
System Improvements Project, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the final settling tank mechanical 
improvements portion of the WWTP Hot Water System & Final 
Settling Tank Mechanical Improvements Project was previously 
moved to the WWTP Sludge Holding System Improvements Project, 
which is currently under construction, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the scope of the WWTP Sludge Holding 
System Improvements Project increased accordingly to include the 
improvements to the final tank drives and installation of the valve 
chambers which requires additional contract administration and 
inspection time, and 



 

 
 
 6 

 WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 
that there are funds available for this purpose per previous 
certifications through funding obtained from the New Jersey 
Infrastructure Bank under S340336-08. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 
 
 1.  The Long Branch Sewerage Authority hereby approves 
transfer of $41,760.00 of the construction phase engineering budget 
from the WWTP Hot Water System & Final Settling Tank 
Mechanical Improvements Project to the WWTP Sludge Holding 
System Improvements Project, subject to Colliers Engineering & 
Design complying with all the requirements of the terms and 
conditions of the various previously approved applicable proposals. 
 
 2.   The Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are 
authorized to sign any documents needed to effectuate this 
resolution. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown   - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE 
Vacant   -  
 
Date:  July 20, 2022 
R3.7-2022 
Exhibit C 

**** 
 
 Mr. Roguski had nothing further to report under Correspondence. 
  
 

  LIST OF CORRESPONDENCE FOR REGULAR MEETING 
LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 

JULY 20, 2022 
 

1) Certified Notice dated 6/06/22 received 6/13/22 from Salvatore Alfieri, Esq., re:9 
Clay Ave. / Block 4 Lot 5.02 / (NOT LBSA) 

 
2) Certified Notice of Hearing received 7/17/22 from Mathew and Caroline Rehm, re: 

54 Sternberger Ave. / Block 86 Lot 3.01, Applicant request a variance from the 
minimum front lot coverage 



 

 
 
 7 

3) Certified Notice of Hearing received 6/28/22 from Paul R. Edinger, Esq., re: 117 
Conover Place / Block 336 Lot 1, Applicant seeks to subdivide one (1) lot into     four 
(4) lots 

 
4) Certified Notice of Public Hearing received 6/28/22 from Robert L. Witek, II, Esq., 

re: 72 Grand Ave. / Block 242 Lot 4, Applicant seeks a Certificate of Continuing 
Non-Conforming Use or alternatively a Use Variance for a pre-existing Multi-Family 
use. 

 
5) Certified Letter received 6/28/22 from New Jersey Department of Environmental 

protection Division of Land Use Regulation, re: CAFRA Individual Permit 
Application, Single Family Residence Redevelopment, Block 57 Lot 4 

 
6) Letter dated 6/28/22 received 6/30/22 from Heather Capone, RMC, Long Branch City 

Clerk, re: Request for Street Vacation – University Place 
 
7) Letter dated 7/5/22 received 7/6/22 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: Project 

No. LBS-0316 / Ocean Gate / 80 Cooper Ave. / Block 306 Lot 1.01; Block 307 Lots 
13-16, 18-22 

 
8) Letter dated 7/5/22 received 7/5/22 from In-Site Engineering. LLC, re: Proposed 

mixed use building at 6 West End Court and 3 & 13 New Court / Block 91 Lots 6.07 
& 7, Block 92 Lot 7 

 
9) Certified Notice of Hearing dated 6/29/22 received 7/6/22 from Paul V. Fernicola, 

Esq., re: 124 North Fifth Ave. / Block 323 Lot 2, The applicant appealed a decision 
dated 10/21/21 of the Zoning Officer to issue a Stop Work Order 

 
10) Certified Notice of Hearing dated 6/29/22 received 7/6/22 from Jennifer S. Krimko, 

Esq., re: 540 and 550 Cedar Ave and 81 Larchwood Ave. / Block 41, Lots 26, 26 
QFARM, 79 & 90. (NOT LBSA) 

 
11) Letter dated 7/07/22 received 7/08/22 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: Hoey 

Pump Station Force Main Replacement/Partial Payment Request No. 6 / Project 
#LBS-275 

 
12) Certified Form of Public Notice dated 7/1/22 received 7/12/22 from Deborah Perrella, 

re: 51 Hilltop Road / Block 99 Lot 10 (NOT LBSA) 
 
13) Certified Notice of Hearing received 7/12/22 from Day Pitney LLP, re: 34 & 36 

Morris Ave and 170 & 176 Ocean Ave. / Block 218 Lots 4, 5, 6, and 8, Applicant is 
proposing to construct a six-story hotel & spa consisting of 107 rooms. 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 8 

14) Certified Notice of Hearing dated 7/6/22 received 7/12/22 from Rick Brodsky, Esq., 
re: 169 Chelsea Ave. / Block 278 Lot 3, Applicant is proposing the subdivision of the 
existing residential lot into four (4) residential lots and the construction of four (4) 
new single-family homes 

 
15) Letter dated 7/12/22 received 7/13/22 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: Partial 

Payment Request No.3 for WWTP Sludge Handling System and Emergency Pump 
Station Improvements/ Thomas Controls Inc. 

 
16) Letter dated 7/14/22 received 7/14/22 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: 

Engineer’s Status Report  
 
17) Letter dated 7/15/22 received 7/15/22 from Colliers Engineering & Design, re: 

WWTP Sludge Handling System and Emergency Pump Station Improvements, 
Project Nos. LBS-272 and LBS-281 

 
  

On Motion by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Brown, and passed by the affirmative vote of all 
members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, the attached List of Correspondence was ordered, 
received, and filed. 

 
 
VIII. Report of Executive Director for the July 2022 Meeting 
 
 Mr. Roguski reported that over the last month the Authority treated an average daily flow 
of 3.82 MGD. The Authority has met all limits of its discharge permit.  
 
 Mr. Roguski stated that, regarding COVID-19, the Authority is back to full staff and is 
still monitoring the situation.  
 
 Mr. Roguski reported that the various components of the Authority’s Duperon flex-rake 
bar-screen require replacement.  Mr. Roguski further explained that the Duperon flex-rake bar-
screen is specifically designed for the specific operational needs of the Authority and that these 
components are proprietary and can only be purchased from one vendor in the state of New 
Jersey.  Mr. Roguski received a quotation in the amount of $31, 976.74 from Koester Associates.  
 
 The following resolution was presented.  
 

RESOLUTION 
 

 Mr. Booth offered the following Resolution and 
moved its adoption; seconded by Mr. Brown 
 
 WHEREAS, the Long Branch Sewerage Authority 
(hereinafter "the Authority") requires the purchase of components, 
consisting of (1) Gen 2 auger support kit, (2) Gen 2 new transmission 



 

 
 
 9 

and augers, and (3) gearbox, for its Duperon Flex-Rake Bar-Screen, 
pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:34-9.1 Purchase of Proprietary Goods or 
Services, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the referenced components are in-kind 
replacements required for the proper operation of the Duperon Flex-
Rake Bar-Screen, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the referenced Duperon Flex-Rake Bar-Screen 
and associated components are proprietary and specifically designed 
and required for the proper operation of the Authority’s headworks 
process, and 
 

WHEREAS, the referenced Duperon Flex-Rake Bar-Screen 
is specially designed for the specific operational needs of the 
Authority’s headworks process, and the use of components other 
than the proprietary ones will undermine the functionality or 
operational performance of the Authority’s existing headworks 
process; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has a substantial investment in 

its Duperon Flex-Rake Bar-Screen, which was installed under the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Modification Project Contract, dated 
December 2009; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 
in writing that the goods are of a specialized nature and necessary 
for the proper operation of the Authority’s Duperon Flex-Rake Bar-
Screen, per the certification attached hereto and made a part hereof, 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority desires to purchase in-kind 
replacement components for its Duperon Flex-Rake Bar-Screen per 
quote 2022-3259 Rev3, dated July 19, 2022, from Koester 
Associates, in the amount of $31,976.74, attached hereto and made a 
part hereof, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority Executive Director has certified 
that there are funds available for this purchase as per the certification 
attached hereto and made a part hereof, and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Long 
Branch Sewerage Authority that the Authority is hereby authorized 
to purchase the replacement components, in the amount of 
$31,976.74 per quote 2022-3259 Rev3, dated July 19, 2022, from 
Koester Associates, required for its Duperon Flex-Rake Bar-Screen. 



 

 
 
 10 

BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER RESOLVED that the 
Authority Chairman and/or Executive Director are authorized to sign 
any documents necessary to effectuate this resolution. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Riley  - AYE 
Mr. Booth  - AYE 
Mr. Brown   - AYE 
Mr. Larco   - AYE 
Vacant   -  
 
Date:  July 20, 2022 
R4.7-2022 
Exhibits D, E, F 

 
**** 

  
 Mr. Roguski reported that the Commissioner Compensation Committee, comprised of 
Mr. Brown and Mr. Larco, met on June 21, 2022. A consensus was not reached regarding 
commissioner compensation, and it was recommended that the matter be discussed during this 
meeting. Mr. Roguski indicated a brief history of commissioner compensation since the 
Authority’s creation in 1953. Mr. Roguski stated that, in 1953, the commissioners received 
$500.00 plus an officer’s compensation. This remained until 1993 when the commissioner’s 
annual compensation and officer compensation was increased to $2,500.00, which has remained 
at that rate until today. Mr. Roguski further stated that he has calculated the current value of this 
compensation.  Mr. Roguski stated that $500.00 in 1953 would be equal to approximately 
$5,500.00 in 2022, and the $2,500.00 in 1993 would be equal to approximately $5,125.00 in 
2022. Mr. Roguski opened the floor for discussion.   
 
 Mr. Riley stated that he feels that the commissioners should be compensated for their 
time and availability to the Authority. Mr. Riley reiterated that when he accepted the position on 
the Board, he was unaware there was a compensation, until he began his duties and realized that 
there is compensation. Mr. Riley further stated that he believes in fair play and that the current 
commissioners should be compensated in the same way as past commissioners.  Mr. Riley stated 
that he would forfeit his compensation in exchange for medical insurance.  
 
 Mr. Roguski stated that Mr. Riley is always available, as are all the Commissioners. Mr. 
Roguski further stated that there is much more involvement than just the monthly meetings; there 
are committee meetings, phone calls and other meetings.  
 
 Mr. Bonello explained that the commissioner compensation is set by the City Council. 
Mr. Bonello also stated that other authorities have various pays and some of them are quite 
higher than ours. Mr. Bonello further explained that what needs to be decided is whether to 
attempt to get the basic fee for being a commissioner raised with the city by ordinance or 



 

 
 
 11 

pursuant to the current ordinance, are you allowed to pay individuals who are chairman of 
various committees more.  
 
 Mr. Brown stated that as a committee member, there was a proposal to increase the 
compensation not to exceed $5,000.00. Mr. Brown is of the opinion that an increase after thirty 
years is noted and well justified to adjust for the cost of living and the current economy. Mr. 
Brown further stated that as of 2011, the state has stopped the insurance benefits compensation.  
 
 Mr. Larco stated that when he was appointed to the Board, he was unaware of any 
compensation and that his sole intention was to serve the taxpayers of the City of Long Branch. 
Mr. Larco stated that in the committee meeting they discussed slight adjustments and how we 
compared to other authorities in the area. Mr. Larco feels that our Authority compensation is 
already on the upper end of the scale in comparison to other authorities in the area.   
 
 Mr. Bonello stated that the compensation is controlled by the city council. Mr. Riley 
replied that is not his understanding, and that the committee has control of that not the council. 
Mr. Roguski read the ordinance from 1953 stating “Each member shall receive such 
compensation not in excess of $500.00 in any one year for his services as such member as shall 
hereafter be determined by said Long Branch Sewerage Authority, provided however that in the 
event that any member of said Authority shall also be appointed officer, agency or employee of 
said Authority, then such member shall also receive such additional compensation for his 
services as such officer as said Long Branch Sewerage Authority shall determine.”  Mr. Larco 
asked to clarify what is proposed to be increased - the $2,000.00 or the base $500.00. Mr. Riley 
agreed.   
 
 Mr. Roguski suggested tabling this discussion until next month. 
 
 Mr. Bonello stated that the Authority Board of Commissioners is a creation of the City 
Council, therefore it may be advantageous to have a discussion with the mayor to see what his 
feelings are on the subject, since they have the authority to bring the base compensation up to 
date. 
 
 Mr. Riley and Mr. Larco would like to attend said meeting. Mr. Roguski said that he will 
email Mayor Pallone and set up a meeting,  
  
 Mr. Roguski had nothing further to report.  
 
 On Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Brown and passed by the affirmative vote of 
all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, the report of the Executive Director, as 
prepared and submitted, is hereby approved and ordered received and filed and made part of the 
Minutes of this Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 12 

IX. As to Bills submitted for payment by Long Branch Sewerage Authority for the 
 Month of June 2022 
  
 The following Resolution was moved by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Riley and passed 
by the affirmative vote of all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain.  

 
RESOLUTION 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE 
AUTHORITY IN SESSION AT A REGULAR MEETING 
THEREOF ON THIS 20th DAY OF JULY 2022 PURSUANT TO 
NOTICE AT WHICH AT LEAST A QUORUM IS PRESENT, the 
List of Bills for the month of June 2022 are found regular and 
payment of each and all, thereof is authorized to be paid out of the 
Revolving Fund, General Funds, Revenue Fund or Collection 
Account as indicated on the said List of Bills attached to the 
Executive Director’s Report. 
 

 
X. Report by Authority Counsel of the Activities of that Office and of Actions 
 taken since June 15, 2022 
 
   
 Mr. Bonello reported that he worked on what was discussed regarding the 
commissioner’s compensation.  

 
Mr. Bonello had nothing further to report.  

   
On Motion by Mr. Larco, seconded by Mr. Brown and passed by the affirmative vote of 

all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, all actions taken, and dispositions made by 
the Authority Counsel of and with regard to each and all of the foregoing items be, and they are 
in all respects approved, confirmed, and ratified. 
 
 
XI. Report by Authority Auditor of the Activities of that Office and of Actions taken 
 since June 15, 2022 
 
  Mr. Fallon reported that he is waiting on the state reports on the pension and health 
insurance to complete the audit. Mr. Fallon further stated that last year’s audit had one comment, 
which has been satisfied and will not be on this year’s audit.  
 
 Mr. Fallon had nothing further to report. 
 
 On Motion by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Larco, and passed by the affirmative vote of 
all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, all actions taken, and dispositions made by 
Authority Auditor of and with regard to each and all of the foregoing items be, and they are in all 



 

 
 
 13 

respects, approved, confirmed and ratified. 
 
  

XII. Report, if any, by Investment Committee. 
 
 The investments are as listed.  

 
 On Motion by Mr. Larco, seconded by Mr. Booth, and passed by the affirmative vote of 

all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain; the Authority Investments were approved 
and made. 

 
 

XIII. Transfers, if any. 
 

The transfers are as listed. 
 

 The following Resolution was moved by Mr. Larco, seconded by Mr. Booth, and passed 
by the affirmative vote all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, approving the 
Authority Transfers for the month of June 2022 as listed. 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LONG BRANCH SEWERAGE 
AUTHORITY IN SESSION AT A REGULAR MEETING 
THEREOF ON THIS 20th DAY OF JULY 2022 PURSUANT TO 
NOTICE AT WHICH AT LEAST A QUORUM IS PRESENT that 
the Authority hereby approves the Transfers made for the month of 
June 2022 as submitted by the Executive Director and orders said 
report received and filed. 

 
 
XIV. Old Business. 
 
A. Engineer’s Report on Redevelopment Projects  
  

Mr. Roguski reported that, in the past month, the Reef project has been signed off on for 
Certificate of Occupancies.  
 
Mr. Roguski reported that two (2) new applications have been received and plans have 
been forwarded to Colliers Engineering for review.  One is a proposed mixed use 
residential building on West End Court and the other is an application for 279 Third 
Avenue.  
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 14 

B. Future Capital Improvements Projects 
 

Mrs. Brasefield reported that the Hot Water System Improvements Project is on hold. Mrs. 
Brasefield further explained that the plans are mostly completed pending some photographs 
for clarification. Mr. Roguski explained that these plans will be shelved for use in the 
future. 
 
The Sanitary Sewer Railroad Crossings Improvement Project has been submitted to one 
section of NJDEP for approval. A formal submission will be made to the other section of 
NJDEP to obtain authorization to go out for bids. 
 
Hoey Pump Station Force Main Project payment has been approved for all completed 
construction, pending final punch list items. 
 
The Sludge Holding System Modifications and Final Setting Tanks Improvements 
Project is ongoing and shop drawings reviews are continuing.   
 
The I&I Improvements survey has been completed and design is being finalized and will 
be submitted to NJDEP for approval. 
 
The Solar Feasibility Study Report has been revised and there will be a meeting with Mr. 
Roguski on Tuesday, July 26, 2022.  
 
Planning documents for the Infrastructure Trust will be finalized next week and a draft 
will be provided to Mr. Roguski for review before being submitted online. Mr. Roguski 
asked if there have been any authorizations for wastewater yet. Mrs. Brasefield replied 
negatively and that they are concentrating on water approvals at this time. 
 
 

XV. New Business  
 

None 
 

 
XVI. Miscellaneous Suggestions for the Good of the Authority 
 
 Mr. Lepore expressed his disgust over the twenty-five-minute discussion of the 
commissioner’s compensation. Mr. Lepore stated that political appointees should not be going to 
the mayor to request compensation and that this sends the wrong message to the public. Mr. 
Lepore commented Mr. Larco’s statement that he is here to serve the public’s interest. Mr. 
Lepore suggested that the commissioners re-examine their position on this subject and start 
looking at it from Mr. Larco’s perspective.  
  
 Mr. Roguski thanked Mr. Lepore.  
 
 



 

 
 
 15 

XVII.  Adjournment at 3:53 p.m. 
 

There being no further business, on Motion by Mr. Booth, seconded by Mr. Larco and 
passed by the affirmative vote of all members present, no nays, no absent, no abstain, the 
meeting was adjourned at 3:53 p.m. 

 
      
                                                                                                Respectfully submitted, 
 
             

         
 _____________________________________ 

 David G. Brown, Secretary 
_____________________________ 
Thomas Roguski, Executive Director   



Photovoltaic System 
Feasibility Study

Accelerating success.

August 17, 2022
Presented to:  Long Branch Sewerage Authority

Presented by:  Thomas Brys, CEP, CEM, CDSM, CSDP
Energy Specialist



Today’s Agenda

Introduction 

Colliers 2

1

Study Goals 2

Project Location3

Cost Comparison4

Environmental Benefit Summary5

Recommendation6

Next Steps7

Conclusion8

Questions9



Introduction

3Colliers Engineering & Design



• The LBSA has been presented with an opportunity to consider use of the
adjacent property owned by New Jersey Natural Gas (NJNG) for the
purpose of developing and implementing a solar electric (photovoltaic or
PV) project.

• The electric energy generated by the proposed PV project would be
delivered to the LBSA’s electric utility interconnection for consumption at
the Treatment Plant at a lower cost than the grid-supplied electric.

• This presentation will focus on the various benefits that a feasibility study
can provide to the LBSA prior to engagement in a solar electric project.

4Colliers Engineering & Design



Study Goals

5Colliers Engineering & Design



• Verify and document if a PV project is practical and technically feasible;

• Calculate the total economic, environmental and operating benefits; and

• Identify and document challenges to implementing the recommendations.

6Colliers Engineering & Design



Project Location

7Colliers Engineering & Design



LBSA Plant 
SiteNJNG Property 

included in Study



Cost Comparison

9Colliers Engineering & Design



• The LBSA spends ~$259,000 annually for ~2,230,123 kWh from the grid.

• CED estimates the proposed PV project will generate ~1,387,386 kWh (62%)
and the LBSA’s new annual cost with a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) is
estimated at ~$150,000 annually.

• Estimated annual savings to LBSA of approximately $60,000 to $100,000.

10Colliers Engineering & Design



Environmental Benefit Summary

11Colliers Engineering & Design



12Colliers Engineering & Design



Recommendation

13Colliers Engineering & Design



• CED recommends the LBSA consider operating as a “Host” and avoid asset
ownership. The LBSA may leverage their favorable credit rating and solicit
private third-party investors to own, operate and maintain the proposed
PV system.

14Colliers Engineering & Design



Next Steps

15Colliers Engineering & Design



• Facilitate a meeting with NJNG to review these findings;

• Document NJNG’s and LBSA’s requirements and timing to advance the
project to mutual and formal decisions; and

• Provide a photovoltaic project implementation strategy including 
preliminary budget and schedule.

16Colliers Engineering & Design



Accelerating success.

Colliers Engineering & Design 17

Questions?



Contact
Thomas Brys
thomas.brys@collierseng.com

Colliers Engineering & Design 18

Accelerating success.

Contact



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

July 26, 2022    

Prepared for: 
 
 

Long Branch Sewerage Authority 
150 Joline Avenue 
Long Branch, Monmouth County, NJ 

  
 

331 Newman Springs Road 
Suite 203 

Red Bank, NJ 07701 
Main: 732-383-1950 

Colliersengineering.com 

  Project No. LBS-0320 

 
 

Photovoltaic 
Feasibility Study 



Photovoltaic Feasibility Study | July 26, 2022 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 
1.0     INTRODUCTION .......................................................................................................... 1 

2.0     PROJECT BACKGROUND ........................................................................................... 1 

3.0     ENERGY USE AND GENERATION ............................................................................ 1 

4.0       PV SYSTEM COMPONENTS ....................................................................................... 2 

    4.1    PV Array Types .................................................................................................. 3 

    4.2     DC to AC Power Inverters ............................................................................... 3 

5.0       FINANCIAL INCENTIVES AND BENEFITS ................................................................. 3 

    5.1     Solar Renewable Energy Certificates (SRECs) ............................................. 4 

    5.2     Investment Tax Credits (ITCs) ......................................................................... 4 

    5.3   The Modified Accelerated Cost-Recovery System (MACRS) ..................... 4 

6.0     FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDED PV SYSTEMS .................................................... 5 

7.0     RECOMMENDATIONS FOR IMPLEMENTATION ................................................... 5 
 



Photovoltaic Feasibility Study | July 26, 2022 1 

 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

The Long Branch Sewerage Authority (LBSA) has maintained a “leading edge” position with 
regard to the operation of the Wastewater Treatment Plant and adaptation of modern 
energy system technologies. Additionally, the LBSA has a record of successfully 
implementing utility infrastructure and modernization projects. Recently, the LBSA has been 
presented with an opportunity to consider use of adjacent property owned by New Jersey 
Natural Gas (NJNG) for the purpose of developing and implementing a solar electric 
(photovoltaic or PV) project. Colliers Engineering and Design (CED) has been engaged to 
evaluate and quantify the potential economic, environmental and operational benefits of 
utilizing a PV system to provide electric energy to the plant site. CED has performed a site 
review and analysis to determine if the implementation of a PV system at LBSA facility is 
practical and economically feasible to generate benefits sufficient to justify further 
consideration. 

 

2.0 PROJECT BACKGROUND 

The CED team met with representatives from the LBSA and NJNG to discuss the basic 
approach to the feasibility study, more specifically, how the findings will be ranked and 
prioritized to support each organization’s internal evaluation of our findings. We performed 
this study to help the LBSA identify the best path forward to meet the following goals: 

 
• Verify and document if a PV project is practical and technically feasible; 
• Calculate the total economic, environmental and operating benefits; and 
• Identify and document challenges to implementing the recommendations. 

 

3.0 ENERGY USE AND GENERATION 

The electric supply service, including transmission and distribution, for the LBSA facilities is 
provided by JCP&L. The annual electric consumption is approximately 2,240,000 kWh. The 
annual electric utility cost is approximately $259,000. The proposed PV project will generate 
electric parallel to the utility grid. The LBSA is expected to benefit by a reduced cost for 
electricity. The savings could range between 35%-62% equating to a total dollar amount 
savings between $90,000 to $160,000 per year. The electric energy generated by the 
proposed PV systems will be delivered behind (downstream) the utility meter and primarily 
consumed by the LBSA facility. 

 
The following illustrates the bottom-line commercial benefit to the LBSA based on 2 
implementation scenarios. To appropriately measure and document the economic benefits, 
the following scenarios were considered:  



Photovoltaic Feasibility Study | July 26, 2022 2 

 

 

 

Scenario A (Optimized with PV ownership) assumptions include LBSA issuing debt and 
owning the proposed PV system outright. This entitles the LBSA the burdens and benefit of 
system ownership. PV system ownership requires the management of Operation and 
Maintenance (O&M) activities as well as the sale and monetization of Solar Renewable Energy 
Certificates (SRECs). 

 
Scenario B (Optimized with PV Power Purchase Agreement (PPA)) assumptions include LBSA 
acting as a “host site” to a private owner of the proposed PV system, whereby, the Private 
Owner provides the LBSA with a reduced electric rate and an annual cash lease payment. 
 
The key assumptions include information gathered from the LBSA including: historic utility 
billing, historic LBSA site electric consumption and empirical data from recent bid results. 

 
LBSA Baseline and Proposed PV Scenarios A and B 

 

 
Scenario B (Optimized with PV PPA) offers the greatest economic benefit with the lowest risk 
to the LBSA. 

 
Simple cash flow analysis has been prepared and added as appendices to this document for 
both Scenario A and B. The cash flow illustrates a $3M to $4M capital investment requirement 
and indicates the viability for a “Revenue Positive” project with LBSA acting either as an owner 
or a Host. 

 

4.0 PV SYSTEM COMPONENTS 

Based on our findings, the adjacent property and LBSA plant site have been identified as 
conducive for the application of a PV system. The following sections provide an explanation 
of our findings and recommendations, including, the type of PV systems applicable, the 



Photovoltaic Feasibility Study | July 26, 2022 3 

 

 

possible system location and configuration, and the associated project economics and 
benefits. 

 

4.1 PV Array Types 

Ballasted, Ground-Mounted 
 

Ballasted, ground-mounted systems (pictured in Figure 1) provide low-impact installation for 
photovoltaic arrays on sites with a preference to avoid excavation and significant ground 
disturbance. Ballasted, ground-mounting systems are a preferred approach to brownfields 
and capped parcels which can be configured to accommodate stormwater management 
requirements. Ballasted systems are required to comply with and accommodate 
maintenance for capping systems and materials. 

 

 
All project scenarios will include PV modules (a.k.a. solar panels), mounting hardware, and 
power inverter(s) to convert the system’s DC power to usable AC power. The PV module 
warranties range from twenty (20) to twenty-five (25) years. Warranties for inverters range 
from five (5) to ten (10) years. 

 
4.2 DC to AC Power Inverters 

Multiple PV modules are installed as part of a typical PV system. The modules are then 
connected to the electric utility through an inverter that changes the Direct Current (DC) 
produced by the modules into Alternating Current (AC). This change to AC will enable the 
electric power to be used by the adjacent LBSA facilities or distributed to the utility grid. 

 

5.0 FINANCIAL INCENTIVES AND BENEFITS 

New Jersey has been one of the leaders in the United States in encouraging and providing 
financial incentives for renewable energy projects. The federal government has also provided 
various incentives, mainly in the form of tax credits and deductions. These incentives are 



Photovoltaic Feasibility Study | July 26, 2022 4 

 

 

specifically developed to assist the equity owner of the proposed PV system. Since the 
incentives are mostly tax-equity based, the LBSA (a no-tax entity) would not benefit from this 
incentive. 

 
5.1  Solar Renewable Energy Certificates (SRECs) 

 
New Jersey uses a financing model that attempts to set the payback period for a solar 
installation at ten (10) to fifteen (15) years. This financing model includes Solar Renewable 
Energy Certificates (SRECs). SRECs are marketable certificates issued to the owner of a PV 
system for each 1,000 kWh (1MWh) of electricity generated. SRECs are sold or traded 
separately from the power generated; the income from the sale of the SREC can be used to 
offset the cost of the system by applying the revenue to a loan payment or debt service. The 
value of the SREC is market driven and is controlled by the amount of the Solar Alternative 
Compliance Payment (SACP), which is set by the relevant NJ Legislative protocol. The SREC 
market is derived from New Jersey’s Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS), which requires that 
all licensed energy suppliers in the state invest in energy generated from renewable sources, 
with specific requirements for solar power. If a supplier does not invest by purchasing SRECs, 
the supplier must pay the SACP for a percentage of the total annual power delivered into 
New Jersey. Since SRECs typically trade below the SACP, there is an incentive for the supplier 
to buy SRECs. The SREC Program provides a market for SRECs to be created and verified on 
the owner’s behalf. The New Jersey Clean Energy program facilitates the sale of SRECs to New 
Jersey electric suppliers. PV system owners in New Jersey with a grid-connected PV system 
are also eligible to participate in New Jersey's SREC Program. 

 
5.2 Investment Tax Credits (ITCs) 

The Solar Investment Tax Credit (ITC) is a federal policy that incentivizes residential and 
commercial properties to purchase solar energy systems. Commercially, the credit can be 
used by businesses that install, develop and/or finance the project. The tax credits can be 
used to lower a business’ taxes dollar for dollar, up to twenty-six (26) percent of the total cost 
of the solar energy system. 

 
5.3 The Modified Accelerated Cost-Recovery System (MACRS) 

MACRS is a method of depreciation, in which certain tangible assets used for business 
purposes are recovered through annual tax deductions. These deductions lower a business’ 
taxable income, which, therefore, lowers their taxes and increases their return on 
investment. MACRS is a common method used for many tangible properties. For solar energy 
equipment, the tax basis can be recovered within five (5) years. In addition, eligible 
renewable energy systems put into service before January 1, 2024 can receive a fifty (50) 
percent bonus depreciation. This allows a business to depreciate the cost of the solar energy 
system by fifty (50) percent in its first year of service. If an investment tax credit is used, then 
the tax basis for the MACRS will only be 85% of the total system cost.  MACRS provides 



Photovoltaic Feasibility Study | July 26, 2022 5 

 

 

lucrative financial incentive for owners of the proposed PV system. The project is 
economically viable to an independent, private investor thereby creating a revenue positive 
Host scenario project for the LBSA. 

 

6.0 FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDED PV SYSTEMS 

Colliers Engineering and Design identified the LBSA as conducive for the installation of a PV 
system. The following section identifies the specific physical requirements, financial 
investment required and potential benefits. 

 

7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR IMPLEMENTATION 

The recommended PV system can be implemented with LBSA as the PV system owner.  
Ownership will require a capital investment of approximately $3M to $4M.  Based on that 
investment, the Project will maintain a “Revenue Positive” financial forecast. Project financing 
is available to the LBSA using conventional bond financing or may utilize the low-cost 
borrowing advantages of the New Jersey i-Bank and/or County Improvement Authority. 

If the LBSA prefers to operate as a Host and avoid asset ownership, the LBSA may leverage  
the favorable credit rating and lender profile and solicit private third-party investors to own, 
operate and maintain the proposed PV system. 

The preferred third-party scenario for the LBSA is to engage and negotiate with the property 
owner, utility provider and neighbor, New Jersey Natural Gas (NJNG). NJNG has a corporate 
initiative through New Jersey Resources to cultivate and own renewable energy systems 
similar to the proposed PV system. 

CED recommends LBSA request and facilitate a meeting with NJNG to review our findings 
and collaborate for potential implementation. CE&D is prepared to issue prescriptive LBSA 
technical requirements to NJNG to consider their role in implementation. Conversely, CED is 
prepared to issue an RFP and solicit competitive responses from qualified firms to obtain 
real-time pricing and lease payment offers. 

 

 

 

 

 



Photovoltaic Feasibility Study | July 26, 2022 6 

 

 

Appendix Scenario A 
 

 



Photovoltaic Feasibility Study | July 26, 2022 7 

Appendix Scenario B 
 

 

 

 



 

 

Photovoltaic Feasibility Study | March 1, 2022 6 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Colliers Engineering & Design is a trusted provider of 
multi-discipline engineering, design and consulting 
services providing customized solutions for public and 
private clients through a network of offices nationwide. 

 

For a full listing of our office locations, please visit 
colliersengineering.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1 877 627 3772 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Civil/Site • Traffic/Transportation • Governmental • Survey/Geospatial 
Infrastructure • Geotechnical/Environmental • Telecommunications • Utilities/Energy 

 
 



Annual	Production	Report	produced	by	Tom	Brys

©	2022	Folsom	Labs 1/2 February	22,	2022

kW
h

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
0

50k

100k

150k

200k
Shading:	1.5%Shading:	1.5%

Reflection:	3.1%Reflection:	3.1%

Soiling:	2.0%Soiling:	2.0%

Irradiance:	0.7%Irradiance:	0.7%Temperature:	1.1%Temperature:	1.1%

Mismatch:	3.4%Mismatch:	3.4%

Wiring:	0.3%Wiring:	0.3%

Clipping:	0.5%Clipping:	0.5%

Inverters:	1.9%Inverters:	1.9%

AC	System:	0.5%AC	System:	0.5%



Annual	Production	Report	produced	by	Tom	Brys

©	2022	Folsom	Labs 2/2 February	22,	2022


	1.pdf
	��Photovoltaic System Feasibility Study
	Today’s Agenda
	Introduction
	Slide Number 4
	Study Goals
	Slide Number 6
	Project Location
	Slide Number 8
	Cost Comparison
	Slide Number 10
	Environmental Benefit Summary
	Slide Number 12
	Recommendation
	Slide Number 14
	Next Steps
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Contact

	2.pdf
	1.0 INTRODUCTION
	2.0 PROJECT BACKGROUND
	3.0 ENERGY USE AND GENERATION
	4.0 PV SYSTEM COMPONENTS
	4.1 PV Array Types
	4.2 DC to AC Power Inverters

	5.0 FINANCIAL INCENTIVES AND BENEFITS
	5.1  Solar Renewable Energy Certificates (SRECs)
	5.2 Investment Tax Credits (ITCs)
	5.3 The Modified Accelerated Cost-Recovery System (MACRS)

	6.0 FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDED PV SYSTEMS
	7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR IMPLEMENTATION


